202

Connecticut Society

# Sons of the American Revolution



MANUAL

ANUAST WILL



# Connecticut Society

# Sons of the American Revolution



## MANUAL

Constitution, by laws, membership roll

JANUARY, 1901

1901

E20%, 3 (73)

hmoge fame 4 74.

## BOARD OF MANAGERS.

(Elected May 10, 1900.) PRESIDENT Jonathan Trumbull, Norwich VICE-PRESIDEN'T Edwin S. Greelev. New Haven SECRETARY Charles G. Stone. Hartford TREASURER John C. Hollister, New Haven REGISTRAR Hobart L. Hotchkiss, New Haven HISTORIAN Joseph G. Woodward, Hartford CHAPLAIN Rev. Edwin S. Lines. -New Haven NECROLOGIST Henry R. Jones, New Hartford Zalmon Goodsell. Bridgeport H. Wales Lines. Meriden Henry B. Simonds. Eli C. Birdsev. Henry C. Sherwood. Henry Woodward. Middletown Louis R. Cheney. John W. Brooks. Hartford Torrington Sylvester C. Dunham. F. St. John Lockwood, Norwalk Norwich Frank B. Gay, Bela P. Learned. John Spencer Camp, George E. Judd. Waterbury Nathan Easterbrook, Jr., New Haven DELEGATES TO THE NATIONAL CONGRESS Morris B. Beardsley, Bridgeport Charles F. Brooker. Ansonía Delegate at Large Rufus E. Holmes. Winsted Thomas P. Taylor. Bridgeport Samuel Daskam. Norwalk Rev. Frank Russell, L. Wheeler Beecher. Westville Charles Hopkins Clark, Hartford Merritt Heminway. Watertown Geo. C. F. Williams. Frederick A. Spencer. Waterbury Leverett Belknap. Robert W. Hill. Edgar J. Doolittle. Meriden Wm. E. Chandler. New Haven Levi E. Coe. Everett E. Lord. Walter Hubbard, Franklin H. Hart. Ernest E. Rogers, George H. Ford, New London SECRETARIES OF LOCAL BRANCHES (Ex-officio). Isaac W. Birdseve. New London Bridgeport Carl J. Viets, John M. Harmon. Meriden - Charles A. Quintard, Norwalk

Wm. E. Chandler.

New Haven

William M. Olcott.

Norwich



## CONSTITUTION

\*\*\*

#### ARTICLE I.

NAME.

The name of this society shall be the Connecticut Society of the Sons of the American Revolution

### ARTICLE II.

#### NATIONAL SOCIETY.

This Society is a part of the National Society of the Sons of the American Revolution. It recognizes all State Societies of Sons of the American Revolution as co-equal and entitled to receive from this Society such assistance and information as may best promote the objects for which these societies have been organized.

#### ARTICLE III.

## OBJECTS.

The objects of this Society are to perpetuate the memory and the spirit of the men who achieved American Independence; to encourage historical research in relation to the American Revolution; to preserve documents, relics, and records of the individual services of revolutionary soldiers and patriots; to mark, by appropriate monuments, historic places within this State; to promote the celebration of patriotic anniversaries, and by these and similar means to impress upon the present and future generations the patriotic spirit which actuated our ancestors and established the Republic of the United States of America.

## ARTICLE IV.

#### MEMBERSHIP.

Section 1. Any man not less than twenty-one years of age, who is descended from an ancestor who with unfailing loyalty rendered material aid to the cause of American Independence in the War of the American Revolution, either as a military or naval officer, sailor, soldier, or official in the service of any of the original thirteen Colonies or States, or Vermont, or as a recognized patriot whose services are of public record, shall be eligible for membership in this Society, if found worthy.

## HONORARY MEMBERS.

Section 2. Women may be admitted as honorary members, subject to the conditions as to age and descent established in the case of active members.

### APPLICATIONS.

Section 3. All applications for membership in this Society shall be made in duplicate, upon blank forms furnished by the Society. They shall be signed with the full name and address of the applicant, and shall also be signed by at least one member of the Society nominating and recommending the applicant.

#### ARTICLE V.

#### OFFICERS.

The officers of this Society shall be a President, a Vice-President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, a Registrar, an Historian, and a Chaplain, who shall be elected by ballot for the term of one year, and shall continue in office until their successors are elected and qualified.

#### ARTICLE VI.

#### BOARD OF MANAGERS.

Section 1. There shall be a Board of Managers whose duty it shall be to conduct the affairs of the Society, which Board shall consist of the officers of this Society, the delegates to the National Society, the Secretaries of the several branches of this Society ex-officio, and fifteen others.

Section 2. The Board of Managers shall have power to fill any vacancy occurring among the officers of the Society, the members of the Board, or delegates to the National Society.

#### ARTICLE VII.

#### MEETINGS.

Section 1. A meeting for the election of officers and the transaction of business shall be held annually, in the City of Hartford, on the 10th day of May (the anniversary of the capture of Fort Ticonderoga by a Connecticut expedition), or if said day falls on Sunday, then on the following day; and a meeting for social purposes shall be held annually at such a time and place as the Board of Managers may determine. At each annual meeting there shall be elected, in addition to the officers provided for in Article V, fifteen members of the Board of Managers, one delegate at large, and one delegate for each fifty or fraction of fifty exceeding twenty-five members; said delegates, together with such officers as are provided for by the Constitution of that body, shall represent this Society in all meetings of the National Society.

Section 2. Ten members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of this Society.

Section 3. The hour for holding the annual meeting shall be 12 o'clock—noon—and the time and place for

holding any special meeting shall be designated by the Board of Managers.

Section 4. Special meetings of the Society shall be called by the President, when directed so to do by the Board of Managers, or whenever requested in writing by fifteen or more members, on giving fifteen days' notice, specifying the time and place of such meeting and the business to be transacted.

Section 5. Special meetings of the Board of Managers may be called by the President at any time, and shall be called upon the request of five members of the Board, made in writing Five members shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board.

Section 6. General business may be transacted at any special meeting of the Board of Managers or of the Society.

#### ARTICLE VIII.

#### BRANCHES.

#### LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS.

Section 1. Twenty-five members of this Society residing in any town or county of this State may send a written request to the Board of Managers, asking authority to associate as a Branch of this Society in such town or county; and the Board of Managers may grant such request.

#### NAME.

Section 2. Local Branches shall be known as The
Branch of the Connecticut Society
of the Sons of the American Revolution, No.

## OFFICERS.

Section 3. Each Branch may have a President, Secretary, and Treasurer, and such other officers as the by-laws of the Branch may determine.

#### MEMBERS.

Section 4. No person shall be admitted into a Branch, as a member, until after his admission into the State Society in the manner provided by the Constitution and Laws of this Society, and until he has paid the annual dues and fees as provided by said Laws. And any member suspended or expelled, or in any way losing his membership in the State Society, shall thereupon cease to be a member of the Branch.

#### BY-LAWS.

Section 5. Each Branch may make by-laws, rules, and regulations for its government so long as such by-laws, rules, and regulations do not conflict with the Constitution and Laws of this Society, or with the Constitution and Laws of the National Society.

#### ARTICLE IX.

#### AMENDMENTS.

This Constitution may be amended or repealed, provided written resolutions to that effect are first presented to, and approved by, a majority of the Board of Managers present at any meeting of said Board; provided said amendments are subsequently approved by a majority of the members present at any meeting of the Society; and, provided further, that whenever this Constitution is to be amended, repealed, or in any way changed, notice thereof, specifying said changes in full, shall be sent to each member of the Society at least ten days before such action is to be taken.

## BY-LAWS.

يل يلل يلل

#### FEES AND DUES.

Section 1. Applicants elected by the Board of Managers shall become members of this Society upon payment of the membership fee and dues for one year. For active members, the membership fee shall be three dollars and the annual dues two dollars. For honorary members, the membership fee shall be fifty cents and the annual dues fifty cents. The payment of thirty dollars by an active member or of five dollars by an honorary member at any one time shall constitute the person paying such sum a life member, and such person shall thereafter be exempt from payment of annual dues.

Annual dues shall be payable to the Secretary by enrolled members on the 10th day of May in each year, but new members qualifying between the beginning of the calendar year and the date of the annual meeting shall not be liable for the payment of dues during the next succeeding society year.

A member who shall remain in arrears for dues for three months after notice of his indebtedness has been mailed to him directed to his last known residence, may be dropped from the rolls by the Board of Managers, and may be reinstated in his membership by said Board upon the payment of his indebtedness to the Society.

Applications for membership shall be accompanied by the membership fee and one year's dues; which sum shall be refunded in case the application shall not be approved, or the applicant'shall fail of election.

#### PERMANENT FUNDS.

Section 2. All receipts from life membership shall be set aside and invested under the direction of the Board of Managers as a permanent fund, of which only the income shall be used for the payment of ordinary expenses.

#### MEMORIAL FUND.

Section 3. There shall be a Memorial Fund to be used for the preservation of graves and monuments of revolutionary soldiers and patriots; the marking of historic spots; and the purchase of historic places and buildings. This fund shall consist of all receipts from bequests, special subscriptions, and any regular funds of the Society, voted by the Board of Managers.

#### SOCIAL MEETINGS.

Section 4. The Society shall hold an annual meeting for the purpose of celebrating some event in Revolutionary history, the time and place of holding such meeting to be determined by the Board of Managers; and said Board shall also determine the manner of such celebration.

## MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF MANAGERS.

Section 5. The regular meetings of the Board of Managers shall be held on the third Tuesday of April and October in each year.

#### PRESIDING OFFICER.

Section 6. The President, or in his absence the Vice-President, or in their absence a chairman pro tem., shall preside at all meetings of the Society and of the Board of Managers, and shall have a casting vote. The presiding officer shall preserve order and shall decide all questions of order, subject to appeal to the meeting.

#### DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT.

Section 7. The President shall be the official head of the Society. He shall perform such duties as usually pertain to that office and as are designated in these By-Laws.

#### DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY.

Section 8. The Secretary shall receive all money from the members, and shall pay it over to the Treasurer, taking his receipt for the same. He shall conduct the general correspondence of the Society; shall notify members of their election and of such other matters as the Society may direct. He shall have charge of the seal, and of such records of the Society as are not herein given especially in charge of other officers of the Society; and, together with the presiding officer, he shall certify all acts and orders of the Society. He shall, under direction of the President or acting President, give notice of the time and place of all meetings of the Society and of the Board of Managers, and shall give such notices of the votes, orders and proceedings of the Society as the Society or Board of Managers may direct.

#### DUTIES OF THE TREASURER.

Section 9. The Treasurer shall have charge of the funds of the Society; he shall receive all money from the Secretary, and give his receipt for the same, which money he shall deposit in the name of the Society, and shall pay out for the benefit of the Society only, in such sums as the Society or Board of Managers may direct, and upon the order of the Secretary, countersigned by the President. He shall keep a true account of his receipts and disbursements, and at each annual meeting shall make a full report to the Society. The books of the Secretary and Treasurer shall be open to the inspection of the President and Board of Managers at all times.

#### DUTIES OF THE REGISTRAR.

Section 10. The Registrar shall receive all applications and proofs of membership. He shall examine the same and report his opinion thereon to the Board of Managers. Imperfect and incorrect applications may be returned to the applicant by the Registrar for correction or completion. After applications have been passed upon by the Board of Managers, he shall, if the applicant is accepted, forward one copy to the Registrar-General of the National Society, and shall make a record of such parts of said application as he deems necessary, in a book of forms prepared for that purpose. The original application with the accompanying proofs shall be kept on file. He shall also have the custody of all historical, geographical, and genealogical books, papers, manuscripts, and relics of which the Society may become possessed. He shall receive twentyfive cents for recording each accepted application, and shall make a report in writing at each annual meeting.

#### BOARD OF MANAGERS.

Section 11. The Board of Managers shall judge of the qualifications of applicants for membership, and shall have control of the affairs of the Society. They shall appoint an auditing committee and a committee on necrology. They shall have power to suspend or expel any member of the Society for sufficient cause, by a vote of two-thirds of the members of the Board present at any regular or special meeting; provided that at least two weeks' notice of such proposed action shall have been given to such member by notice mailed to him at his last known address. A member so suspended or expelled shall have the right to appeal to a meeting of the Society from the action of the Board of Managers.

#### DUTIES OF THE HISTORIAN.

Section 12. The Historian shall keep a record of all facts in connection with the Society which he may judge to be of historic value, and shall make a report in writing at each annual meeting.

#### DUTIES OF THE CHAPLAIN.

Section 13. The Chaplain shall perform such devotional and religious duties as may be called for by the Board of Managers in the course of business or exercises of the Society.

#### AMENDMENTS.

Section 14. These by-laws shall not be altered, amended, or repealed unless such alteration or amendment shall have been proposed in writing at a previous meeting of the Board of Managers and entered upon the records, with the name of the member proposing the change, and also adopted by a majority of the members present at a regular meeting of the Society, or at a special meeting called for that purpose.



## CERTIFICATES. INSIGNIA.

Certificates of Membership are issued to Members of the Society by the National Society, and will be mailed by the Secretary upon receipt from the National Society. These certificates are often delayed several months. Spanish War Medals are issued by the National Society to those members of the Society who served in the recent war with Spain, after perfecting their membership.

Badges may be had from Tiffany & Co., of New York, at Nine Dollars, upon presentation of an order from the Registrar of the National Society, which can be obtained of the Secretary of the State Society. As there is sometimes delay in the registry of names with the National Society, it is necessary to wait a few weeks after election before these orders for Badges can be supplied.

Society Buttons of Blue, Buff and White (the colors of the Society) may be obtained of the Secretary at 25 cents each.

y y y

## APPLICATIONS.

Application blanks may be obtained of the Secretary or the Registrar of the State Society, or of any of the Secretaries of the local branches.

Applications should be filled out strictly in accordance with the directions given on the blanks, and care should be exercised to state as fully as possible references to authorities quoted for the service of ancestors. Discretion should be used in making statement of the services of ancestors to get a few facts which can be authenticated, rather than to make a voluminous presentation of services which the Registrar cannot readily verify. The burden of proof of eligibility lies with the applicant, and not with the Registrar.

Applications after being properly filled out should be forwarded to the Registrar.



## MEMBERSHIP ROLL.

\*\*\*

546	Adams, Frank M.	Rockville
1313	Adams, Josiah G.	Wethersfield
1191	Agard, Charles W.	New Bedford, Mass.
536	Aiken, William A. (Gen.)	Norwich
1402	Albee, George E. (Capt.)	New Haven
1134	Albro, Rev. Addis	Albany, N. Y.
537	Alden, James E.	Torrington
174	Allen, Jeremiah M.	Hartford
297	Almy, Leonard B. (Dr.)	Norwich
1074	Andrews, Frederick F.	New Haven
1033	Arms, F. Thornton	Navy Yard, New York
1299	Atwater, Frederick S.	New Haven
644	Atwood, Rev. Eugene F.	Hartford
806	Averill, John C.	Norwich
1403	Avery, Addison	Preston
938		N. Y., 108 Lincoln Place
1428	Avery, Irving J.	New London
619	Babcock, Nathan	Westerly, R. I.
1268	Babcock, Samuel	Middletown
547	Backus, Thomas Providence	e, R. I., 61 Waterman St.
37	Bacon, William T. (Dr.)	Hartford
500	Bailey, Ezra B.	Windsor Locks
1248	Bailey, John H. Brookly	yn, N. Y., 151 So. 5th St.
1261	Bailey, Henry L.	Groton
1314	Baker, Ellis B.	New Haven
1034	Baker, Isaiah, Jr.	Hartford
1193	Baldwin, George M.	Bridgeport

939	Baldwin, Henry	New Haven
1194	Baldwin, Samuel W.	Bridgeport
940	Banks, Edwin	Bridgeport
926	Banks, Samuel S.	Bridgeport
1195	Barber, Oscar M.	Mystic
639	Barber, William P.	Hartford
1229	Barbour, Samuel L.	Hartford
800	Barker, Charles C.	Meriden
1348	Barker, George W.	Bridgeport
1075	Barlow, Thomas D.	Waterbury
1356	Barnes, Charles H.	Preston
1035	Barnes, T. Atwater	New Haven
1076	Barnes, William A.	Bridgeport
996	Barnum, George S.	New Haven
621	Barron, William H.	Hartford
1417	Barrows, Freeman W.	Hartford
1230	Barrows, Pitt	Spring Hill
1276	Barry, Carlos, Jr.	New London
178	Bartram, Isaac N.	Sharon
1277	Bartram, Orlando	Bridgeport
62	Bates, Albert C.	Hartford
339	Bates, Nathan D.	Norwich
322	Batterson, James G.	Hartford
249	Beach, George W.	Hartford
284	Beach, Henry L.	Hartford
774	Beardsley, Edward W.	Hartford
1078	Beardsley, Morris B.	Bridgeport
1036	Beardsley, Samuel F.	Bridgeport
1079	Beckwith, Cyrus G.	New London
510	Beecher, Ebenezer B.	Westville
677	Beecher, Edward C.	New Haven
(Life) 440	Beecher, L. Wheeler	Westville

511	Beers, Henry C.	New Haven
1369	Beers, Robert C.	Hartford
141	Belcher, William	New London
1017	Belden, Channing S.	Hartford
775	Belden, Frank E.	Hartford
776	Belden, Frederick S.	Hartford
777	Belden, Herbert E.	Hartford
142	Belknap, Leverett	Hartford
1173	Bennett, M. Toscan	Hartford
1384	Betts, Henry B.	Danbury
738	Bevins, Le Grand	Meriden
150	Bidwell, Jasper H.	Collinsville
1151	Billard, John L.	Meriden
576	Bingham, Edwin H.	Hartford
1135	Bingham, Capt. Theo. A.	Washington, D. C.
1315	Bird, Theodore	Bethlehem
1199	Birdsey, Eli C.	Meriden
941	Birdseye, Isaac W.	Bridgeport
1231	Birkenmayer, Curtis J.	Waterbury
892	Bishop, Henry A.	Bridgeport
32	Bishop, Joseph	West Hartford
1152	Bishop, Nathan L.	Norwich
1370	Bissell, Clinton T.	So. Manchester
620	Bissell, Hiram J.	Lakeville
55	Bissell, Thomas H.	Hartford
1249	Blake, S. Leroy	New London
942	Blake, William P.	New Haven
807	Blakeslee, Charles H.	New Haven.
646	Bliss, Frederick S.	Hartford
1200	Bliss, Walter	Hartford
376	Boardman, Thomas J.	Hartford
375	Boardman, William E.	Hartford

145	Boardman, William F.	J. Hartford
377	Boardman, William G.	Hartford
170	Bond, Frank S.	New York City, 38 W. 51st St.
165	Bond, Henry R.	New London
290	Bond, William W.	New London
1174	Bostwick, Leonard	New Haven
1291	Boughton, Henry I.	Waterbury
1269	Bouton, William H.	New Haven
943	Bowen, James B.	Putnam
373	Bowers, Dwight E.	New Haven
374	Bowers, Edward A.	New Haven, Box 595
739	Bowers, George N.	Springfield, Mass., 60 Spring St.
467	Boyd, Edward E.	Hartford, 6 Girard Ave.
944	Bradley, Clarence P.	Meriden
1371	Bradley, Frederick T.	New Haven
1136	Bradley, George T.	New Haven
945	Bradley, Nathaniel L.	Meriden
1393	Bragaw, Griswold	New London
188	Brainard, Austin	Hartford
1394	Brainard, Fisk	Cobalt
250	Brainard, Leverett	Hartford
678	Brainerd, Frank	Portland
679	Brainerd, Judson B.	Portland
80	Brayton, Charles E.	Stonington
946	Brewer, Edward P.	Norwich
1018	Brigham, Frank M.	. Rockville
1376	Brigham, Walter D.	Willimantic
680	Bristol, Rev. Cornelius	G. Hartford
647	Bronson, Arthur H.	Flartford
1081	Bronson, Charles F.	Waterbury
91	Bronson, Henry T.	New York City, 111 Broadway
998	Brooker, Charles F.	Ansonía

623	Brooks, Irving S.	Glastonbury
227	Brooks, Isaac W.	Torrington
238	Brooks, John W.	Torrington
809	Brown, Charles W.	Forestville
6	Brown, Freeman M.	Hartford
947	Brown, George S.	New Britain
1418	Brown, Harry H.	Southbury
200	Browne, John D.	Hartford
1038	Browne, Thomas N.	Lyons, France
1424	Brusstar, Benjamin F.	New Haven
539	Bryant, Edward B.	Hartford
1250	Bryant, George C.	Ansonia
94	Bryant, Thomas W.	Torrington
893	Buckingham, Charles B.	Bridgeport
441	Bulford, John H.	New Haven
681	Bulkeley, Morgan G. (H	on.) Hartford
593	Bulkley, Benjamin A.	Southport
682	Bulkley, E. Brainerd	New York City, 40 Wall St.
1039	Bull, Thomas M.	Naugatuck
158	Bull, William L.	New York City, 38 Broad St.
1316	Bullard, William S.	Bridgeport
684	Bunce, John L.	Hartford
177	Burbank, James B. (Maj.)	Ft. Hancock, Sandy Hook, N.J.
1385	Burbeck, William H.	New London
1082	Burgess, George F.	New Haven
1361	Burnham, Alfred H.	Jewett City
1251	Burnham, George S.	Winsted
648	Burrall, George B.	Lakeville
380	Burroughs, James R.	Bridgeport
1153	Burroughs, William P.	Bridgeport
247	Burrows, Wilbur F.	Middletown
125	Burrows, William H.	Middletown

552	Burton, Franklin	Ansonia
1362	Burton, George L.	New Haven
553	Burton, Silas	Bridgeport
1317	Burwell, Robert N.	New Haven
1083	Bushnell, Asa C.	New Haven
895	Bushnell, Frank C.	New Haven
419	Butts, Charles R.	Norwich
420	Butts, George C.	Norwich
418	Butts, Henry L.	Norwich
469	Calef, J. Francis (Dr.)	Cromwell
87	Calef, Thomas	Bridgeport
810	Calhoun, David	Hartford
1278	Calhoun, David S.	Hartford
1201	Calhoun, John	Torrington
811	Calhoun, J. Gilbert	Hartford
1372	Calkins, Frederic H.	Hartford
1190	Camp, Elizur	Durham
948	Camp, Franklin A.	Meriden
949	Camp, Herbert L.	Middletown
1318	Camp, John Spencer	Hartford
1252	Card, Huber D.	Willimantic
1019	Carey, Frederick W.	Norwich
146	Carroll, Adams P.	Norwich
350	Carroll, George W.	Norwich
169	Catlin, Abijah, Jr.	Hartford
736	Catlin, William H.	Meriden
813	Chaffee, J. Dwight	Willimantic
1181	Champion, John N.	New Haven
897	Chandler, Charles E.	Norwich
192	Chandler, William E.	New Haven
220	Chaney, Charles F.	New Landon

Own son

1084	Chapman, Charles S.	Waterbury
299	Chapman, Dwight	Hartford
1137	Chapman, Hubert W.	Hartford
134	Chappell, Alfred H.	New London
135	Chappell, Frank H.	New London
293	Chappell, William S.	New London
778	Charlton, John H.	Meriden
1085	Chase, Henry S.	Waterbury
1086	Chase, Irving H.	Waterbury
233	Cheney, Frank W. (Col.)	South Manchester
1202	Cheney, John S.	South Manchester
237	Cheney, Knight D.	South Manchester
1041	Cheney, Louis R. (Major)	Hartford
351	Chesebrough, Rev. Amos S.	New Hartford
686	Chesebrough, Sheffield St. L	ouis, Mo., 3962 Cook Ave.
153	Chew, J. Lawrence	New London
1377	Choate, Charles N.	Bridgeport
229	Clark, Charles Hopkins	Hartford
1300	Clark, Clarence L. Brook	klyn, 331 Tompkins Ave.
1233	Clark, Edward L.	New Haven
1301	Clark, George C.	Terryville
1292	Clark, Herman D.	New Haven
1203	Cleveland, Lemuel W.	Plainfield
1429	Coe, Benjamin Lee	Waterbury
513	Coe, Charles P.	Bridgeport
1042	Coe, Edward S.	Cromwell
1363	Coe, J. Walter	Meriden
1364	Coe, J. Williams	Meriden
951	Coe, Levi E.	Meriden
898	Coffin, O. Vincent (Hon.)	Middletown
899	Cogswell, Frederick H.	New Haven
1147	Cogswell, Leonard W.	New Haven

Co.

900	Cogswell, Richard B.	Bridgeport'
952	Coit, Alfred	New London
472	Collins, Atwood	Hartford
953	Colton, Olcott B.	Hartford
577	Comstock, Albert S.	New Canaan
63	Conant, George A.	Hartford
473	Cone, James B.	Hartford
815	Cone, Joseph W.	Hartford
816	Cone, Robert B.	New York City, Nat'l Surety
745	Congdon, Carey	New London
624	Conklin, Harry S.	Hartford
625	Conklin, William P.	Hartford
309	Converse, Alfred W.	Windsor Locks
312	Converse, Charles A.	Norwich
1087	Converse, Eliab A.	Evanston, Ill.
1088	Cook, Frederick T.	Terryville
1279	Cooke, Lorrin A. (Hor	n.) Winsted
817	Cooley, Charles P.	Hartford
180	Cooley, Francis R.	Hartford
1234	Copley, George D.	New Britain
1235	Corbin, Albert F.	New Britain
611	Corbin, Algernon B.	New Haven
421	Corbin, Frank A.	New Haven
1089	Corbin, Frank E.	New Britain
954	Corbin, George W.	New Britain
1204	Corbin, Philip	New Britain
99	Cornwall, Horace	Hartford
747	Couch, George W.	Meriden
779	Couch, John O.	Middlefield
167	Countryman, Rev. Fra	
78	Countryman, William	
780	Covey, William E.	Duluth, Minn.

514	Cowell, George H.	Waterbury
278	Cowles, Edwin S.	Hartford
277	Cowles, Frank	Hartford
687	Cowles, Frederick L.	New Haven
955	Cram, George W.	Norwalk
1236		Waterbury
	Crane, Augustin A.	
1043	Crane, George W.	New Haven
1381	Crippen, Daniel W.	New Haven
1373	Cummings, Francis A.	Hartford
474	Curtin, Roland G. (Dr.) Phila	
901	Curtis, George M.	Meriden
1425	Curtiss, Homer A.	Meriden
205	Cutler, Ralph W.	Hartford
1175	Daboll, Loren E.	New London
740	Danforth, Joseph W. Ne	w York City, 95 Broad St.
1044	Daniels, Frederick J.	Putnam
818	Dann, Horace E.	Norwalk
819	Dann, Wallace	Norwalk
688	Daskam, Samuel (Col.)	Norwalk
649	Davis, Charles E. Chicag	co, Ill., 2937 Kenmore Ave.
1176	Davis, John H.	New Haven
650	Davis, Solon P.	Hartford
1177	DeLamater, Richard W.	Hartford
555	Deming, Edward H.	Farmington
1148	Deming, Ferdinand, Jr. Den	ver, Col., 156 West 2d Ave.
2	Deming, Lucius P.	New Haven
257	Denison, Charles W.	Norwich Town
689	Denison, Frederic	Mystic
1045	Denison, Lee S.	New London
164	Dewell, James D.	New Haven
820	Dewell, James D., Jr.	New Haven
020	2011014 Janies 24, 111	2 10 11 2 20 1011

748	Doolittle, Edgar J.	Meriden
515	Downes, William E.	New Haven
1090	Driggs, George A.	Waterbury
118	Dunham, Sylvester C.	Hartford
626	Dustin, Charles E.	Hartford
999	Eames, Carlos S.	Bridgeport
822	Earle, Arthur W.	New Haven
1419	Easterbrook, Frederick J.	New Haven
70	Easterbrook, Nathan, Jr.	New Haven
749	Eddy, Arthur H.	Windsor
928	Edgerton, Frank C.	Meriden
256	Edmond, John D.	Leavenworth, Kan.
824	Edwards, Frederick B.	Hartford '
804	Edwards, Henry C.	Cromwell
1091	Eggleston, Percy C.	New London
781	Eldridge, James W.	Hartford
1046	Eliot, William R.	Meriden
223	Ellis, Benjamin F.	Hartford
8	Elmore, Samuel E.	Hartford
826	Elton, James S.	Waterbury
827	Elton, John P.	Waterbury
1092	Ely, Calvin S.	Branford
691	Ely, William D.	Providence, R. I., 1 Magee S
556	Ely, William H.	New Haven
902	English, Benjamin R.	New Haven
1357	English, James E.	New Haven
782	Everitt, Edwin B.	Meriden
83	Farnham, Elias B.	Hartford
128	Farnsworth, Frederic	New London
1154	Farrel, Franklin	Ansonia
444	Farren, Merritt A. (Rev.	.) Lyndon, Vt.

445	Farren, Roswell B.	New Haven
443	Farren, Willis H.	New Haven
1358	Febiger, Leo (Capt.)	New Haven
38	Felt, Levi L.	Hartford
26	Fenn, John R.	West Hartford
27	Fenn, Linus T.	West Hartford
957	Fenton, Charles	Middletown
1047	Ferry, Edwin S.	New Haven
446	Field, Frederick W.	New Haven
692	Fitch, Charles W. (Dr.) N	Y. City, 640 Madison Ave.
1320	Fitch, Nathan B.	New Haven
1205	Fitts, George H.	Ashford
108	Fitts, Henry E.	Hartford
1351	Flint, Henry H.	Clinton
693	Foote, Edward B.	Larchmont, N. Y.
422	Foote, Ellsworth I.	New Haven
1237	Forbes, Edwin H.	Torrington
694	Forbes, Oliver T.	Norwich
517	Ford, George H. (Gen.)	New Haven
580	Ford, William E.	New Haven
1352	Fowler, Charles H.	New Haven
048	Fowler, Frank G.	Bridgeport
411	Fowler, Frank S.	Salem, Mass.
959	Fowler, Herbert G.	New Britain
750	Fowler, Oswin H. D.	Wallingford
1000	Fox, Charles J.	Willimantic
1321	Fox, Edward L.	New Haven
1093	Fox, Simeon J.	New Haven
283	Franklin, Gen. William B.	Hartford
1049	Francis, William M.	Atlanta, Ga., Box 412
1094	Frisbie, Edward L., Jr.	Waterbury
1095	Frost, Charles W. S. (Dr.)	Waterbury

382	Frost, Russell (Gen.)	South Norwalk
1404	Fuller, Edward E.	Tolland
1096	Fulton, William E.	Waterbury
651	Fyler, Anson P.	Hartford
Own   1412	C 11 A T	TCT / 1
Own   1413	Gallup, Asa L.	Norwich
337	Gardiner, Curtis C. St. Lou	
1097	Gardiner, Rev. Frederick	Lancaster, Pa.
1386	Gardner, Nathan R.	Baltic
834	Gardner, Robert S.	Derby
11	Gay, Erastus	Farmington
25	Gay, Frank B.	Hartford
1206	Gaylord, Hezekiah	Hartford, 15 Girard Ave.
1207	Geer, Albert L.	South Manchester
1138	Geer, William H.	Lebanon
960	George, James H.	Norwich
487	Gilbert, Charles E.	Hartford
503	Gilbert, Timothy	Rocky Hill
836	Gildersleeve, Alfred	Portland
253	Gillette, Albert B.	Hartford
475	Gilman, Daniel C.	Baltimore, Md.
1302	Gladden, William H.	New Britain
447	Gladding, Charles F.	Hartford
476	Glazier, Charles M.	Hartford
518	Glazier, Frank D.	South Glastonbury
1001	Glazier, Daniel J.	Hartford
383		e. Md., 210 E. Livingston St.
1430		Westport
904		West Cornwall
1002		Vernon
282		Hartford
961	Goodsell, Buel	Meriden
, 0,		

1003	Goodsell, Rev. Daniel A.	Chattanooga, Tenn.
521	Goodsell, Granville W.	Bridgeport
270	Goodsell, Lewis	Redding
523	Goodsell, Zalmon	Bridgeport
61	Goodwin, Rev. Francis	Hartford
203	Goodwin, James J.	Hartford
640	Goodwin, Nelson J. (Dr.)	Hartford
673	Goodyear, Robert B.	North Haven
962	Goodyear, Watson E.	Naugatuck
1343	Gorham, Julius H.	Bridgeport
1405	Gorton, Joseph C.	Hartford
1406	Gorton, Philip G.	Hartford
1322	Gough, Charles H.	New Haven
29	Grant, James M.	Hartford
163	Grant, Roswell	East Windsor Hill
448	Greeley, Edwin S. (Gen.)	New Haven
697	Greeley, Franklin M.	Bridgeport
224	Greene, Jacob L.	Hartford
557	Gregory, James G. (Dr.)	Norwalk
796	Griffing, Martin H.	Danbury
1238	Griggs, David C.	Waterbury
1303	Griswold, Charles	Guilford
497	Griswold, Edward H. (Dr.)	East Hartford
1387	Griswold, Howard R.	Hartford
840	Griswold, Robert S.	Cromwell
79	Griswold, Roger M.	Providence, R. I.
46	Griswold, Rufus W. (Dr.)	Rocky Hill
105	Gross, Charles E.	Hartford
1294	Grumman, William E.	Hartford
1004	Guild, Frank E.	Windham
698	Gulliver, Frederic P.	Norwich
1098	Gulliver, Henry S.	Waterbury

449	Hale, Almarin T.	New London
1099	Hale, Wallace L.	New London
905	Hall, Arthur E.	Meriden
906	Hall, Eugene A.	Meriden
1395	Hall, Henry H.	Hartford
628	Hall, James P.	Hartford
1304	Hall, John L.	New Haven
964	Hall, Lewis C.	New Canaan
581	Hall, Russell L.	New Canaan
783	Hallock, Edwin	Derby
1100	Hamilton, Paul D.	Waterbury
31	Hammond, Rev. Edw. P.	Hartford
797	Harmon, John M.	Meriden
1344	Harris, Walter S. G.	Hartford, 186 Sargeant St.
40	Harrison, Henry B. (Hon.)	
259	Hart, A. Elijah	Hartford
50	Hart, Charles E.	New Haven
1280	Hart, Ferdinand A.	Hartford
23	Hart, Franklin H.	New Haven
1178	Hart, Harrie B. Ph	iladelphia, Pa., 828 Arch St.
1101	Hart, Nathaniel R.	Stamford
1209	Hart, William A.	New Haven
582	Hatch, George E.	Hartford
384	Hatch, Levi P.	Millerton, N. Y.
843	Hawley, Charles W.	Bridgeport
148	Hayden, Jabez H.	Windsor Locks
149	Hayden, Nathaniel W.	Windsor
1407	Hayes, Nathaniel J.	New Haven
752	Heath, Edwin L.	Rockville
(Life) 226	Heaton, John E.	New Haven
1396	Helme, John W.	South Windsor
1397	Heminway, Louis M.	Waterbury

699	Heminway, Merritt	Watertown
57	Hendee, Edward D.	New Haven
319	Henry, E. Stevens	Rockville
12	Herrington, Alfred G.	Hartford
1383	Hewitt, Charles J.	New London
524	Hewitt, Elisha	New Haven
1323	Higgins, Edwin W.	Norwich
385	Hill, Ebenezer	Norwalk
295	Hill, Ebenezer J.	Norwalk
558	Hill, Robert W.	Waterbury
845	Hillhouse, James W.	Willimantic
252	Hills, J. Coolidge	Hartford
398	Hills, William E.	New York City, 141 Broadway
1262	Hilton, Charles H.	New Haven
286	Hillyer, Drayton	Hartford
1324	Hitchcock, Arthur C.	Waterbury
143	Hitchcock, Henry P.	Hartford
1295	Hodge, Col. Justin	Riverton
160	Holcombe, John M.	Hartford
846	Hollister, Herbert H.	Hartford
41	Hollister, John C.	New Haven
1103	Holmes, Charles L.	Waterbury
1210	Holmes, Rufus E.	Winsted
1104	Holmes, Walter W.	Waterbury
296	Hooker, Edward (Comn	ndr.) Brooklyn, N. Y.
186	Hooker, Edward B.	Hartford
159	Hooker, Edward W.	Hartford
784	Hooker, Thomas W.	Hartford
1105	Hooper, Joseph	Durham
1325	Hopkins, Samuel H.	Bridgeport
559	Hopson, John, Jr.	New London
1326	Hosmer, Frederick A.	New Haven

930	Hotchkiss, Edwin B.	Bridgeport
75	Hotchkiss, Hobart L.	New Haven
1239	Hotchkiss, Ira C.	Watertown
1305	House, Charles E.	So. Manchester
1306	House, Henry S.	Hartford
317	Houston, James B. (Maj.)	Thompsonville
34	Hovey, Rev. Horace C.	Newburyport, Mass.
700	Howe, Rev. Samuel H.	Norwich
1155	Hoyt, Benjamin F.	New Canaan
701	Hoyt, Henry T.	Danbury
573	Hubbard, Gaston T.	Middletown
450	Hubbard, Josiah M.	Middletown
542	Hubbard, Leverett M.	Wallingford
702	Hubbard, Walter	Meriden
269	Hubbard, Walter B.	Middletown
1005	Hubbell, Harvey	Bridgeport
1398	Hughes, O. J. D. (Dr.), U. S.	Consul, Coburg, Germany
(Life) 669	Hulbert, Thomas H.	Chicago, Ill.
594	Hull, John A.	New Haven
704	Hungerford, Newman	Hartford
1282	Hungerford, William C.	New Britain
754	Hunt, Frederick S.	Bridgeport
1156	Hunter, John L.	Willimantic
604	Huntington, Charles W.	Hartford
68	Huntington, Rev. John T.	Hartford
653	Huntington, Col. Robert W.	Brooklyn Navy Yard
157	Huntington, Robert W., Jr.	Hartford
1211	Huntington, Samuel G.	Hartford
288	Huntington, William H., New	port, R. I., U. S. Naval Sta.
560	Hurlbutt, J. Belden	Norwalk
451	Hyde, Burrell W.	Norwich
798	Hyde, Frank E.	Paris, France

1108	Hyde, Theophilus R., Jr.	Waterbury
232		Hartford
	•	
505	Ingalls, Phineas H. (Dr.)	Hartford
1157	Ingersoll, Charles A.	New Haven
909	Ives, John	Meriden
910	Ives, Leland H.	Meriden
1327	Ives, William W.	Norwich
1052	Jackson, Frederick A.	West Haven
967	James, Howard K., San Francis	co, Cal., 221 Examiner Bldg.
1109	Jennings, James H.	Naples, N. Y.
306	Jewell, Charles A.	Hartford
305	Jewell, Lyman B.	Hartford
307	Jewell, Pliny	Hartford
1296	Johnson, Edwin C., 2d	Norwich
1388	Johnson, E. Franklin	New Haven, 126 High St.
562	Johnson, Joseph W.	Enfield
630	Johnson, Marcus M. (Dr.)	Hartford
316	Jones, Clarence E.	New Hartford
21	Jones, Henry R.	New Hartford
612	Jones, Walter C.	Middletown
1240	Jones, W. Frank	Hartford
1374	Judd, Edward H.	Hartford
849	Judd, George E.	Waterbury
209	Judson, Stiles	Stratford
584	Judson, Stiles, Jr.	Stratford
020	Keeler, Charles B.	New Canaan
850	Keep, Howard H.	Hartford
795	Keigwin, Henry W.	Norwich
1110	Kellogg, Charles P.	Waterbury
	-	

478	Kellogg, Edward W. (Dr.	.) Hartford
49	Kellogg, John P.	Waterbury
56	Kellogg, Stephen W.	Waterbury
1112	Kellogg, William W.	Mystic
1158	Kelsey, William A.	Meriden
388	Kenney, John W.	New Haven
452	Kimberly, Enos S.	New Haven
1270	King, Harvey B.	Hartford
155	Knight, William W. (Dr.	) Hartford
1359	Kuhns, Oscar	Middletown
968	Lamb, Charles H.	Danbury
357	Lambert, Edward R.	Bridgeport
851	Landers, George M.	New Britain
543	Lanman, Charles R.	Cambridge, Mass., 8 Forest St.
161	Lanman, William C.	Norwich
315	Lathrop, Henry C.	Windham
1253	Lay, Julius G.	Barcelona, Spain, U. S. Consul
341	Learned, Bela P.	Norwich
631	Learned, Horace C.	New London
632	Learned, Walter	New London
64	Lee, William W.	Meriden
585	Lee, William H.	New Haven
670	Leeds, John H.	New Haven
755	Levi, Henry B.	Meriden
1263	Lewis, Albert N.	New Britain
453	Lewis, Charles W.	Farmington
911	Lewis, Henry J.	Bridgeport
30	Lewis, John B. (Dr.)	Hartford
1414	Lewis, Robert H.	Hartford
1054	Lewis, Rufus W.	Naugatuck
262	Lincoln, Frederick M.	Hartford

756	Lines, Rev. Edwin S.	New Haven
332	Lines, H. Wales	Meriden
757	Linsley, Charles F.	Meriden
210	Linsley, Solomon F.	North Haven
1140	Lippett, Charles C.	New London
758	Lockwood, Edgar	West Haven
526	Lockwood, F. St. John	Norwalk
1328	Loomis, Seymour C.	New Haven
1006	Loomis, William H.	Rockville
346	Lord, Everett E.	New Haven
13	Love, Rev. William DeL.	Hartford
427	Lummis, Frank C.	Chaplin
1399	Lyman, David	Middlefield
969	Lyman, Henry A.	New Haven, 17 Howe St.
912	Lyon, Ernest P.	Bridgeport
854	MacNaught, Rev. George K.	Hartford
1329	Maltby, Julius	Waterbury
1055	Manwaring, Wolcott B.	New London
359	Maples, Brainerd W.	Norwalk
970	Maples, William L.	Charlottesville, Va.
595	Marcy, Thomas K.	Windsor
362	Markham, Ernest A. (Dr.)	Durham
785	Markham, Francis G.	Providence, R. I.
	Care o	f Ballou, Johnson & Nichols
1426	Marwick, Albert, Jr.	Hartford
642	Mason, Carlos V.	Bristol
527	Mathewson, Albert M.	New Haven
600	Mathewson, Arthur, Brooklyn	
93	Matson, William L.	Hartford
182	Maxwell, Francis T.	Rockville
173	Maxwell, Robert	Rockville

708 McNeill, Charles L. 326 Meech, Stephen B. 760 Merriam, George C. 855 Merriman, William B. 709 Mersick, Charles S. 856 Merwin, Edwin F. 934 Merwin, John N. 175 Merwin, Samuel E. 1056 Middlebrook, James R. 971 Middlebrook, Louis F. 857 Middlebrook, William N. 761 Miles, Richard W. 1213 Mills, Dwight P. 1159 Mills, Lyman A. 1297 Mills, William S. 1007 Mitchell, Emlyn V. 1307 Mix, Charles W. 1057 Mix, Eli 1214 Mix, Elisha, Jr. 1008 Mix, Frank W. 1408 Mix, John W. 1283 Mix, Willis L. 858 Monroe, Charles F. 1360 Monson, Frank A. (Capt. 1298 Moore, George W. 455 Morehouse, Cornelius S. 95 Morgan, Henry C.	Meriden Naugatuck Middlefield Bridgeport Hartford New Haven New Haven Stamford Stamford Yalesville New Haven Meriden New Haven South Windsor New Haven Colchester
455 Morehouse Council	
- Cornelius S.	New Haven
and thenry C.	Colobout
Saily William 1). [1]# \	Hard (
103 Morgan, Wm. E., New Hay	ven, care E. S. Wheeler & Co.
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	on, care L. S. Wheeler & Co.

44 860 1400 258 1160 586 1330 972	Morris, John E. Morris, Richard C. Morse, Gardner Morse, George N. Moseley, William H. Moses, George N. Munger, Edwin H. Muzzy, Adrian J.	Hartford New London New Haven Meriden New Haven New Haven West Hartford Bristol
861	Naramore, Frank J. Newcomb, George F.	Bridgeport New Haven
973 499 498	Newfon, Arthur D. Newton, Charles E.	Bridgeport Hartford Hartford
464	Newton, Charles W.	Hartford
710	Newton, George B.	Hartford
765 863	Newton, Henry G. Niles, William Porter (Rev.) Noble, Charles H.	New Haven Laconia, N. H. New Milford
974	Noble, George B.	Easthampton, Mass.
655	Noble, Rev. Thomas K.	Norwalk
975 1116 1021	Norcross, Henry F. Norkett, Franklin S. North, John C.	Bridgeport New London New Haven
633	Northrop, David W.	Middletown
864	Northrop, Henry E., Brooklyr	n, N.Y., 480 Jefferson Ave.
865	Norton, Thomas L.	Lakeville
1215	Norton, Walter W.	Lime Rock
66	Noyes, Franklin B.	Stonington
614	Olcott, William M.	Norwich
225	Olmsted, Albert H.	Groton

482	Olmsted, Frederick Law	Brookline, Mass.
1264	Orcutt, Willie F.	Rockville
298	Osborn, John A.	Norwalk
302	Osborn, Norris G.	New Haven
867	Osborne, Arthur D.	New Haven
528	Osgood, Frederick L.	Norwich
364	Palmer, Edwin	Norwich
1254	Palmer, John G.	Middletown
868	Palmer, Ralph A.	Meriden
1331	Parish, James H.	New Haven
Own / 7255	Parish, Roswell, Jr.	Hartford
son 793	Parker, Charles	Meriden
869	Parker, Charles J.	New Britain
799	Parker, Harris	Boston, 170 Congress St.
1161	Parker, Henry F.	Norwich
335	Parker, John D.	Hartford
803	Parker, Robert P.	Hartford
111	Parker, Timothy	Wauregan
1431	Parsons, George M.	Waterbury
1308	Payne, Frederick W.	Hartford
712	Pearl, Edward	Mansfield
489	Pearson, Edward J.	Hartford
1389	Peck, Arthur T.	Bridgeport
329	Peck, Charles	New Britain
1390	Peck, Eugene B.	Bridgeport
1060	Peck, Joel W. S.	New Haven
566	Peck, Miles L.	Bristol
1179	Pellett, Daniel L.	Andover, Ohio
714	Pelton, Henry H.	Middletown
402	Pelton, James H.	Portland
1256	Penfield, Loren D.	New Britain

1162	Perkins, Charles C.	New London
871	Perkins, Charles S.	Meriden
1216	Perkins, Nathaniel S.	New London
430	Perkins, Rev. Warren S.	Meriden
493	Perry, John H.	Southport
491	Perry, Winthrop H.	Southport
715	Phelps, Charles G.	Wallingford
1309	Phelps, Dexter E.	Meriden
392	Phelps, Rev. Dryden W.	New Haven
323	Phelps, Jeffery O., Jr.	Hartford
51	Phelps, Roswell H.	East Granby
1365	Pickett, Charles W. (Col.)	New Haven
1284	Pickett, Edwin S.	New Haven.
431	Pickett, Rufus S.	New Haven
977	Platt, John H.	New Haven
456	Platt, Orville H. (Hon.)	Meriden
1061	Plimpton, Frederick	Hartford
1062	Plimpton, James M.	Hartford
1063	Plimpton, Linus B.	Hartford
978	Pomeroy, Charles B.	Willimantic
1427	Pomeroy, Harry S.	Willimantic
1310	Pond, Edgar L.	Terryville
615	Pond, Jonathan W.	New Haven
567	Pond, Philip, 2d	New Haven
568	Pond, Walter	New Haven
1242	Poore, John R.	Waterbury
1217	Porter, James W. B.	Waterbury
1382	Potter, Robert A.	Bristol
641	Powers, Harry S.	South Windsor
490	Powers, T. Wolcott	Boston, Mass., 30 Court St.
483	Pratt, Thomas S.	Rockville
979	Prentis, Edward (Dr.)	New London

570	Prescott, William H.	Rockville
1024		New Haven
1420		New Haven
147		Manchester
366		Danielson
529	Quintard, Charles A.	Norwalk
530	Quintard, Frederick H.	South Norwalk
Own / 22	Quintard, Henry H.	Hartford
Own / 1409	Rathbun, Beríah S.	Norwich
980	Raymond, Gilbert S.	Norwich
657	Redfield, Henry S.	Hartford
914	Redfield, William T.	Hartford
255	Rembert, John R.	New Haven
1119	Rhoades, David P.	Stratford
872	Rice, Frederick B.	Waterbury
981	Rich, John S.	Rochester, N. Y.
1120	Richardson, William M.	Bridgeport
1285	Richmond, William H.	Scranton, Pa.
1257	Ripley, Charles E.	Hartford
571	Ripley, Charles S. (Lieut.)	, Chicago, Ill., Masonic Temple
1332	Ritter, Wallace S.	New Haven
1141	Roach, Albert O.	Mystic
201	Robbins, Edward D.	Wethersfield
77	Robbins, Philemon W.	Hartford
873	Robbins, Thomas W.	Wethersfield
1421	Roberts, Albert C.	Lakeville
597	Roberts, George	Hartford
598	Roberts, Henry	Hartford
718	Robinson, John T.	Hartford
117	Robinson, Lucius F.	Hartford

719	Rockwell, Charles L.	Meriden
741	Rockwell, George	Meriden
720	Rockwell, Warren A.	Harriman, Tenn.
742	Rockwell, William F.	Meriden
743	Rogers, Ernest E.	New London
393	Rogers, Horace	Norwich
434	Root, Francis P.	Lakota, N. D.
414	Root, Joseph E. (Dr.)	Hartford
242	Root, Judson H.	Hartford
121	Rowland, Henry L.	Waterbury
122	Rowland, Herbert S.	Waterbury
394	Royce, Rev. Alfred L., Philadely	phia,Pa.,U.S.NavalHome
349	Rudd, Malcolm D.	Lakeville
009	Rudd, William B.	Lakeville
266	Russell, Charles H.	Hartford
375	Russell, Frank (Rev.)	Bridgeport
544	Russell, Gordon	Waterbury
218	Ryder, Ely M. T.	New Haven
789	Ryder, Henry C.	Danbury
217	Sage, John H.	Portland
064	Sands, Frank E.	Meriden
163	Sanford, E. Starr	Danbury
768	Savage, George E.	Meriden
345	Schauffler, Henry P. (Rev.)	Berlin
769	Schenck, Martin B.	Meriden
142	Scott, George A.	Pequabuck
123	Scott, H. Walter	Hartford
010	Scott, M. Bradford	Hartford
333	Scribner, Edwin M.	Bridgeport
936	Seeley, William E.	Bridgeport
025	Segur, Gideon C. (Dr.)	Hartford

294	Selden, Henry M.	Brooklyn, N. Y., 126 Macon St.
616	Seymour, Dudley S.	Hartford
285	Seymour, George D.	New Haven
617	Seymour, Horace S.	Hartford, 8 Girard Ave.
1286	Seymour, Robert T.	Hartford
916	Sheffield, Thomas D.	Westerly, R. I.
917	Sheldon, Charles A.	New Haven
1422	Shelton, Charles E.	Hartford
918	Shelton, William R.	Bridgeport '
435	Shepard, James	New Britain
1183	Sherman, Clifton L.	New York City, N. Y. Sun
1243	Sherwood, Henry C.	Bridgeport
459	Shipman, Arthur L.	Hartford
222	Shipman, Nathaniel	Hartford
1410	Sibley, William	North Windham
1143	Sill, Edward E.	New Haven
1012	Silliman, Lewis B.	Bridgeport
984	Simmons, Abel H.	Mystic
1219	Simonds, Henry D.	Bridgeport
248	Skinner, William C. (C	ol.) Hartford
131	Slade, Lucius M.	Bridgeport
985	Sloper, Andrew J.	New Britain
1124	Slosson, Frank S.	Bridgeport
1334	Smith, Archer J.	Waterbury
1311	Smith, Ferdinand B.	Bridgeport
506	Smith, Frank C.	Middletown
919	Smith, G. Brainard	Hartford
987	Smith, Jerome C.	Middletown
Own 1353	Smith, J. W. B.	East Hampton
(Life) 1335	Smith, Joel W.	East Hampton
1336	Smith, John F.	New Hartford
1126	Smith, Joseph R.	Waterbury

1026	Smith, Knighton	St. Paul, Minn.
920	Smith, Ralph H.	Waterbury
1379	Smith, Richard B.	New London
1271	Smith, Walter M.	New Hartford
1066	Snow, Charles P.	New Haven
1312	Southworth, Frank A.	New Haven
1415	Spaulding, Elmer H.	New London
876	Spencer, Elmer E.	Meriden
726	Spencer, Francis E.	New Haven
14	Spencer, Frederick A.	Waterbury
81	Spencer, George F.	Deep River
659	Sperry, Mark L.	Waterbury
988	Sperry, Nehemiah D. (Hon.)	New Haven
328	Squires, Elisha B.	Hartford
137	Stagg, Henry P.	Stratford
1067	Stanley, Alix W. New Yor	k City, 107 Chambers St.
368	Stanton, John G.	New London
921	Starr, Charles F.	New London
17	Starr, Frank F.	Middletown
1127	Starr, Jonathan	Terryville
300	Stearns, Henry P. (Dr.)	Hartford
1244	Stedman, Lewis H.	Hartford
1221	Steele, Elisha J.	Torrington
989	Steele, T. Sedgwick	Hartford
588	Steiner, Bernard C., Baltimore,	Md., 1038 No. Eutaw St.
727	Stetson, James E. (Dr.)	New Haven
1366	Stevens, Charles W.	Danbury
879	Stevens, Frederick H.	Bridgeport
790	Stevens, Frederick S.	Bridgeport
1367	Stevens, George C.	Danbury
990	Stevenson, Henry C.	Bridgeport
231	Stillman, Henry A.	Hartford

882	Stivers, James H.	Stonington
658	St. John, George B.	Norwalk
330	St. John, Howell W.	Hartford
1258	Stoddard, Frank E.	New Haven
991	Stone, Charles G.	Hartford
1028	Storrs, Samuel P.	New Britain
1185	Stoughton, Dwight G.	Hartford
728	Strickland, George E.	Hartford
1128	Sugden, William E.	Hartford
1144	Sutliffe, Bennett H.	Plymouth
922	Swain, John D.	Worcester, Mass.
58	Swartwout, John H.	Stamford
1129	Swift, Edward S.	New Haven
54	Swift, Tallmadge	Hartford
1029	Swords, Joseph F. N	New York City, 31 Nassau St.
187	Taintor, James U.	Hartford
589	Talcott, Charles H.	Hartford
271	Taylor, James P.	· Hartford
301	Taylor, Samuel	Hartford
216	Taylor, Thomas P.	Bridgeport
1222	Taylor, William O.	Hartford
729	Thayer, George B.	Hartford
884	Thomas, Edgar	New Haven
1287	Thompson, Curtis	Bridgeport
1180	Thompson, Rev. George	L. Baldwins, Long Island
413	Thompson, Isaac W.	New London
1013	Thompson, James W.	Bridgeport
460	Thompson, Sherwood S.	New Haven
731	Thomson, Arthur C. B	rookline, Mass., Sumner Road
466	Thresher, Seneca S.	Norwich
1423	Tileston, Henry M.	Bridgeport

1130	Todd, Milo A.	Hartford
572	Tolles, Charles L.	Hartford
1165	Toquet, Benjamin H.	Westport
437	Townsend, Joseph H.	New Haven
660	Tracy, David W.	Hartford
661	Tracy, Lemuel H.	Hartford
1014	Tracy, Louis D. Engineer Maintenance of Way,	Allegheny, Pa. Eastern Division.
634	Treadwell, John P.	Norwalk
1068	Treat, Arthur B.	New Haven
406	Trowbridge, Francis B.	New Haven
1223	Trowbridge, Rutherford	New Haven
1166	Trubee, David	Bridgeport
1167	Trubee, Samuel C.	Bridgeport
18	Trumbull, Jonathan	Norwich
732	Tucker, Charles A.	Norwalk
1224	Tucker, George W.	Waterbury
310	Turner, Charles	Birmingham, Ala.
308	Turner, Luther G.	Torrington
1368	Tuttle, Byron	Plymouth
1338	Tuttle, William P.	New Haven
771	Twiss, Waldo C.	Meriden
138	Tyler, Augustus C. (Col.)	New London
1030	Tyler, Robert S.	Hartford
885	Upham, Charles L.	Meriden
1131	Upson, Albert S.	Waterbury
318	Upson, Lyman A.	Thompsonville
1339	Van Slyke, W.W., Minneapolis	s, Minn., 209 First Ave.No.
123	Van Duersen, William W.	Middletown
992	Veader, Daniel H.	New Haven
1272	Vibbert, Howard C.	New Haven
635	Viets, Carl J.	New London

1186 Wadsworth, Philip Suffield 772 Wadsworth, Robert A. Hartford 1347 Walker, Elisha H. Bridgeport 1226 Walker, William F. New Britain 1340 Waller, William E. Plattsville	
1347 Walker, Elisha H. Bridgeport 1226 Walker, William F. New Britain	
1226 Walker, William F. New Britain	
·	
1340 Waller William F. Platteville	
7010 Waner, William La. I falls ville	
1187 Ward, Frederick S. New Haven	
1168 Ward, Henry C. Middletown	
1380 Ward, James A. Hartford	
662 Ward, William Naugatuck	
369 Warner, Edgar M. Putnam	
1416 Warner, S. Harris Middletown	
1031 Warner, Henry A. New Haven	
886 Warren, Herbert C. New Haven	
1392 Warren, Joshua R. North Lyme	
1070 Warren, Tracy B. Bridgeport	
993 Warren, William W. J., New York City, 29 Ho	ward St.
1227 Watkinson, Alfred H. Hartford	
591 Watson, Thomas L. Bridgeport	
1260 Weaver, Henry C. New London	
303 Webb, Arthur B. Norwich	
292 Webb, Rodolphus L. Hartford, 57 Farmingt	on Ave.
1342 Weed, Henry H. New Haven	
1341 Weed, Ira DeW. New Haven	
230 Welles, Edwin Newington	
370 Welles, James H. Norwich	
1071 Welles, John N. Hartford	
1432 Wells, Albert S. Bridgeport	
663 Wessels, Henry W. (Gen.) Litchfield	
1289 Wetmore, Charles E. New Britain	
4 Whaples, Meigs H. Hartford	111 0
241 Wheeler, Robert B. Boston, Mass., 59 Fran	nklin St.

1273	Whipple, Durand	Little Rock, Ark.
791	White, Herbert H.	Hartford
212	Whiting, Ezra	Stratford
371	Whitney, Eli, Jr.	New Haven
1274	Whittemore, Harris	Naugatuck
1169	Whittlesey, Granville	Danbury
274	Whittlesey, Heman A.	Newington
1275	Whittlesey, Heman C.	Middletown
1171	Whittlesey, William A.	Pittsfield, Mass.
1411	Wickham, Almeron W.	Hartford, Box 645
1412	Wickham, Clarence H.	Hartford, Box 645
1132	Wilcox, Dwight P.	Meriden
1189	Wilcox, William W., Jr.	Middletown
59	Wilcoxson, Albert	Stratford
1016	Wildman, Leonard D.	Danbury
344	Wiley, J. Allen	Hartford
484	Williams, A. W. C.	Hartford
1391	Williams, Charles F.	Thomaston
1401	Williams, Charles H.	Thomaston
1265	Williams, Charles S.	Hartford
1247	Williams, David W.	Glastonbury
744	Williams, Frank B.	Hartford ,
263	Williams, George	Danbury, 50 Pleasant St.
265	Williams, George C. F. (Dr.)	Hartford
495	Williams, George G.	Hartford
1228	Williams, Harry R.	Hartford
638	Williams, James B.	Glastonbury
1245	Williams, James S.	Glastonbury
1266	Williams, Philip K.	Hartford
1246	Williams, Samuel H.	Glastonbury
1267	Williams, Samuel P.	Hartford
995	Wilson, Claude L.	Middletown

1072	Wilson, George W.	Hartford
773	Wilson, Grove H.	Meriden
1032	Wilson, Oliver E.	Norwalk
246	Woodward, Henry	Middletown
132	Woodward, Joseph G.	Hartford
1290	Woodward, Russell G.	Norwich
890	Woodworth, Henry L.	South Norwalk
190	Wooster, Henry R.	Deep River
574	Wordin, Thomas C.	Bridgeport
1133	Wright, Wilbur L.	Bristol
408	Wright, William A.	New Haven



## HONORARY MEMBERS.

496	Abell	Mrs.	Mary K., Boston, Mass.,	362 Commonwealth Ave.
548	Bates -			Lincoln, Neb., Ingleside
550	Beardsley -	Mrs.	Lucy J. Fayeweather Morris B. Beardsley	Bridgeport
551	Bosworth			Hartford
812	Camp	Mrs.	Susie Healey ) John S. Camp 5	Hartford
512	Chapin -		Mary A. Glazier )	Greenwich
685	Chapman	Miss	Annie B.	Saybrook .
828	Faxon			Hartford
830	Fowler	Mrs.	Carrie B. ) O. H. D. Fowler }	Wallingford
751	Gates, Mrs.	Elizal	beth M. Larrabee, Har	tford, 46 Wadsworth St.
516	Geer	Miss	Frances A.	Lebanon
519	Glazier	Miss	Mary O.	Hartford, 4 Atwood St.
643	Griswold {	Mrs.	Rebecca E. Norton Roger M. Griswold	Providence, R. I.
127	Griswold			Rocky Hill
353	Hale	Miss	Julia L.	Philipsburg, Pa.
181	Hewins	Miss	Caroline M.	Hartford
1281	Hicks			Piqua, Ohio
494	Hill			Norwalk
753	Howland {	Mrs.	Harriet M. Learned \ George T. Howland \	Washington, D. C. 1905 N St.
276	Joslyn {	Mrs.	Minnie Brown (Charles M. Joslyn )	Hartford
IIII	Kellogg	Mrs.	Lucia H. A. Stephen W. Kellogg	Waterbury
404	Millard {	Mrs.	Gertrude Hills Cornwall T. Millard	Hartford
360	Mull	Mrs.	Laura Hale	Philipsburg, Pa.
596	Phelps	Miss	Antoinette R.	Hartford
7				
	548 550 551 812 512 685 828 830 751 516 519 643 127 353 181 1281 494 753 276 1111 404 360 596	548 Bates  550 Beardsley  551 Bosworth  812 Camp  512 Chapin  685 Chapman  828 Faxon  830 Fowler  751 Gates, Mrs.  516 Geer  519 Glazier  643 Griswold  127 Griswold  127 Griswold  1281 Hewins  1281 Hicks  494 Hill  753 Howland  276 Joslyn  1111 Kellogg  404 Millard  360 Mull  596 Phelps	548 Bates { Mrs. " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "	548 Bates { Mrs. Sarah Glazier }   550 Beardsley { Mrs. Lucy J. Fayeweather   651 Bosworth { Mrs. Lucy A. Wilson }   652 Camp { Mrs. Susie Healey }   653 Chapman { Mrs. Mary A. Glazier }   654 Chapman Miss Annie B.   655 Chapman Miss Annie B.   656 Chapman Miss Annie B.   657 Gates, Mrs. Elizabeth M. Larrabee, Har   658 Geer Miss Frances A.   659 Glazier Miss Mary O.   643 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   650 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   651 Griswold { Mrs. Esther E. Hammond }   652 Griswold { Mrs. Carrie B. }   653 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   654 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   655 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   656 Geer Miss Frances A.   657 Glazier Miss Mary O.   658 Gates, Mrs. Elizabeth M. Larrabee, Har   659 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   650 Geer Miss Frances A.   6519 Glazier Miss Mary O.   6510 Geer Miss Frances A.   652 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   653 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   654 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   655 Griswold { Mrs. Rebecca E. Norton }   656 Geer Miss Julia L.   657 Griswold { Mrs. Augusta Isham }   678 Griswold { Mrs. Augusta Isham }   679 George T. Howland }   670 George T. Howland { Mrs. Harriet M. Learned }   670 George T. Howland { Mrs. Minnie Brown }   670 Griswold { Mrs. Laura Hale }   670 Mull Mrs. Laura Hale }   671 Miss Antoinette R.

	202	Pitkin	Ars. Sara H. Loomis "Albert H. Pitkin Hartfor	rd.
	195	Rockwood,	s. Abby A.Abbott, Roxbury, Mass., 1	98Walnut Ave.
	874	Root	frs. Ella G. Moseley Hartfor	rd
	1355	Seymour -	Irs. Alice E. Powers Hartfor Dudley S. Seymour 102	rd, Huntington St.
	722	Seymour	Irs. Laura H. Pond, Hartford, 102	Huntington St.
	723	Seymour	Irs. Susan H. Smith Hartford	, 8 Girard Ave.
(Life)	251	Smith -	Irs. Jane T. Hills "Charles H. Smith Hartfor	ď
	724	Smith	Ars. Sarah J. Boyd New H	aven
(Life)	599	Stevens -	Ars. Jennie M. Daskam '' James L. Stevens Norwal	k
	120	Talcott	Iiss Mary K. Hartford, 81	5 Asylum Ave.
(Life)	535	Thomas -	Ars. Anna Hill New Yo	ork City, Hotel Savoy
(Life)	730	Thompson	Iiss Rhoda A. Woodb	ury
	733	Tyler	Iiss Alice J. Essex	
	438	Viets	Irs. Mary Comstock New Lo	ondon
	590	Watson -	Irs. Alice C. Lyon Thomas L. Watson Bridger	ort
	637	Webster	Irs. Elizabeth S. Hartford, 210	Windsor Ave.



## Members Whose Fathers Served in the Revolution.

Joseph Bishop West Hartford Thomas H. Bissell Hartford Gen. William H. Burbeck New London Elizur Camp Durham Asa L. Gallup Norwich Lewis Goodsell Redding James M. Grant Hartford Col. Justin Hodge Riverton Charles Parker Meriden Henry H. Quintard Hartford Beriah S. Rathbun Norwich John W. B. Smith East Hampton



## Life Members.

L. Wheeler Beecher Westville Capt. Lea Febiger New Haven New Haven John E. Heaton Thomas H. Hulbert Chicago, Ill. Henry A. Lyman New Haven E. Starr Sanford Danbury Joel W. Smith East Hampton Charles F. Williams Thomaston Charles H. Williams Thomaston Mrs. Walter C. Faxon Hartford Mrs. James Hicks Piqua, Ohio

Mrs. Walter C. Faxon Hartford
Mrs. James Hicks Piqua, Ohio
Mrs. Ebenezer J. Hill Norwalk
Mrs. Charles H. Smith Hartford
Mrs. James L. Stevens Norwalk
Mrs. Joseph B. Thomas New York City
Miss Rhoda A. Thompson Woodbury

## Medal List of Members of the Connecticut Society Who Served in the War with Spain.

Leonard B. Almy,

Major and Chief Surgeon, United States Volunteers.

F. Thornton Arms,

Paymaster, United States Navy.

Robert C. Beers,

Naval Reserves, Ship "Catskill."

Theodore A. Bingham,

Major, Corps of Engineers, United States Army.

Arthur H. Bronson,

Lieutenant-Quartermaster, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

E. Brainerd Bulkley,

Naval Reserves.

John L. Bunce,

Assistant Paymaster, United States Navy, Temporary Service.

James B. Burbank,

Major, Fifth United States Artillery.

Carey Congdon,

First Lieutenant and Battalion Adjutant, Third Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

Richard W. DeLamater,

Sergeant, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

Lea Febiger,

Captain, Twenty-third Infantry, United States Army.

Henry H. Hall,

Private, Company K, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

William E. Hills,

Corporal, Astor Battery, United States Army.

James B. Houston, .

Additional Paymaster, United States Volunteers.

Robert W. Huntington, Colonel, Marine Corps, Commanding Fort McCalla, Guantanamo, Cuba.

Samuel G. Huntington, Sergeant, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

William H. Huntington,
Pharmacist, United States Navy.

Louis F. Middlebrook, Ensign, United States Navy, Temporary Service.

Charles W. Newton,
Captain, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

Allan M. Osborn,

Lieutenant, First Connecticut Volunteer Artillery. Died October 1,
1898, of typhoid fever.

Henry S. Redfield, Lieutenant-Colonel, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

Rev. Alfred L. Royce, Chaplain, United States Navy, Ship "New York."

Richard B. Smith,
Second Lieutenant, Third Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

George B. Thayer,
Private, First Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

Augustus C. Tyler,
Colonel, Third Regiment, Connecticut Volunteers.

Leonard D. Wildman, First Lieutenant, United States Signal Corps.









LIBRARY OF CONGRESS
0 011 710 571 4